

Table of Contents

Defere you start	
Delote you start	3
Packing List	3
System Requirements	4
Default Settings	4
Introduction	5
Features and Benefits	5
Camera Hardware Components	6
Front Components	6
Rear Panel Components	6
LED Indicators	7
Hardware Installation	8
Mounting of Camera	8
Connect Ethernet Cable	9
Connect Power Cable	9
Connect Power using Power over Ethernet (PoE)	9
Reset Camera	10
Software - Setup Wizard	11
Launching Setup Wizard for the first time	11
Web Configuration	15
Accessing the Camera Video Display	15
Login	16
Web Manager and Live Video Display Page	16
Video – ActiveX	17
Video – Java	17
Administration - Status Section	19
System Page	19
Video	19
Audio	20
Network	20
Active Users	20
Configuration Section	21
System	21
Video	22
Audio	22
Network	23
User	24

	Upload	24
	E-Mail	25
	Tools Section	26
	FTP Server Test	26
	E-Mail Test	26
	Restart	27
	Factory Reset	27
	Firmware Upgrade	27
	Backup and Restore	28
Soft	ware – IPViewPro 2.0	29
	Launching IPViewPro 2.0 for the first time	29
	Add a camera for monitoring	30
	IPViewPro 2.0 User Interface	31
	Display Controls	32
	Snapshot, recording and audio controls	33
	Live video display controls	33
	Camera configuration with IPViewPro 2.0	34
	Schedule Recording with IPViewPro 2.0	35
	Motion Detection and Digital Input	36
	IPViewPro 2.0 Miscellaneous Options	37
	Load Saved Video Files	38
Тес	hnical Specifications	40

About this User's Guide

This user's guide provides instructions on how to install the TV-IP501P PoE Internet Camera and use it for camera monitoring applications. Camera monitor applications are accessible through an Ethernet local area network.

Before you start

Please read and make sure you understand all the prerequisites for proper installation of your new PoE Network Camera. Have all the necessary information and equipment on hand before beginning the installation.

Packing List

Open the shipping carton and carefully remove all items. In addition to this Manual, ascertain that you have:

- One TV-IP501P PoE Internet Camera
- One Installation CD-ROM containing IPViewPro 2.0 application and Setup Wizard
- One Quick Installation Guide
- One Ethernet Cable
- One Camera Stand
- One Power Adapter

If any of the above items are missing, please contact your reseller.



CAUTION: If powering up the camera with DC power, the Camera must be used with the power adapter included with the device.

System Requirements

Computer

- CPU: For Intel x86 compatible CPUs: Intel Pentium IV 2.0Ghz or above
- CPU: For IA64 compatible CPUs: AMD Athlon 64 3000+ and above
- Memory: 1GB or above
- VGA Resolution: 1024 x 768 or above (Independent Display Card recommended)
- 10BASE-T Ethernet or 100BASE-TX Fast Ethernet Network Interface Card
- CD-ROM Drive for Setup Wizard on Installation CD-ROM
- IPViewPro 2.0 Application Users must use Microsoft® Windows®2000, XP or Vista Operating System with Internet Explorer 6.0 or above with DirectX9.0

Network

Local Area Network: 10Base-T Ethernet or 100Base-TX Fast Ethernet

Note: When you connect multiple cameras and monitor their images synchronously, it is recommended to use a high performance system, such as a Pentium 4 & 2.4GHz PC

Default Settings

Default configuration settings		
Username	This is the Username you will be prompted to enter when you access the	
	camera configuration screens using a Web browser. The default Username is	
	admin.	
Password	This is the Password you will be prompted to enter when you access the	
	configuration windows using a Web browser. The default Password is admin.	
IP address	This is the IP address you will enter into the Address field of your Web browser	
	to access the camera monitor screen and configuration menus using a Web	
	Browser. The camera uses DHCP for IP settings by default. If a DHCP server is	
	not detected, the default IP address is 192.168.10.30. (Make sure your	
	computer is configured to belong to the 192.168.10.X subnet if using the default	
	IP address of the camera.)	
Subnet Mask	The default subnet mask is 255.255.255.0	

Introduction

The TV-IP501P PoE Internet Camera transmits live real-time high-quality MPJEG video through an Ethernet network useful for remote monitoring applications. The live video can be viewed remotely and managed through the network from any computer connected to the network.

Features and Benefits

- **Easy to use** The Camera is a standalone system with built-in CPU, no special hardware or software is required. The camera supports DirectX 9.0; therefore, the only requirement you need is the web browser software such as Internet Explorer 6.0 or above. Once you have a valid IP Address, just connect it and you can view the picture and receive sound from your camera. In addition, the camera's stand allows you to adjust the camera for optimal viewing angle.
- Live audio for listening The built-in mic is useful for listening for voices in front of the camera.
- **Supports variety of platforms** The camera supports TCP/IP networking, SMTP e-mail, HTTP and other Internet related protocols. It can be utilized in a mixed operating system environment, including Windows 2000/XP/Vista, Linux and Mac OS. Moreover, it can be integrated easily into other www/Intranet applications.
- Web configuration Applying a standard web browser, the administrator can configure and manage the camera directly from its own web page via the Intranet or Internet.
- **Remote Utility** The powerful IPViewPro 2.0 application assigns the administrator with a pre-defined user ID and password, allowing the administrator to modify the camera settings from the remote site via Intranet or Internet. When new firmware is available, you can also upgrade remotely over the network for added convenience. Users are also allowed to monitor the image, and take snapshots.

Camera Hardware Components

Front Components



Rear Panel Components

All cables connect to the camera at the rear panel.



Camera Hardware Components

Below is a summary description of the camera hardware.

Audio Mic	Used to capture sounds
DC 5V	The DC power input connector is located on the back of the camera's rear panel and
	is labeled DC5V with a single jack socket to supply power to the camera. Power will
	be generated when the power supply is connected to a wall outlet.
Reset	The Reset procedure will be initiated when this button is pressed. The Factory
	Reset procedure will be initiated when this button is pressed and holded for five
	seconds.
10/100 Ethernet	This RJ-45 connector is used to connect to a 10Base-T Ethernet or to a
LAN Port	100Base-TX Fast Ethernet network. This port supports the N-Way protocol &
	Auto-MDIX, allowing the camera to automatically detect or negotiate the
	transmission speed of the network.
Camera Stand	It's located on the top and the bottom panel of the camera. This hole is used to
Connector	connect the camera's stand to the camera by attaching the screw head of the
	camera stand into the screw hole of the camera.

LED Indicators

PWR	This LED indicator lights green when the camera is powered on. It remains dark when	
	powered off.	
LNK	A steady orange light indicates that the camera has a good connection to LAN. It starts	
	flashing to indicate that the camera is sending and receiving data to and from the LAN.	

Hardware Installation

The camera can be attached to the included stand and placed on a sturdy flat surface or hung from a ceiling or similar flat surface.

Mounting of Camera

Determine the location for the camera and assemble the camera stand. Secure the stand to the flat surface or ceiling with the mounting screws included in the package. When the stand is assembled and firmly attached to flat surface or ceiling, attach the camera. Do not attach network cables or the power cord until the camera is firmly mounted in place.



Connect Ethernet Cable

To connect the camera to your network, connect a Category 5 or better Ethernet cable to the network cable connector located on the camera's rear panel, and then attach it to the network. The Ethernet port will automatically detect and adjust to the speed (10 or 100 Mbps) and polarity (MDI-II or MDI-X) of the connection.



Connect Power Cable

To provide power to the camera using the Adapter, connect the AC power adapter to the DC power input connector, also located on the camera's left side panel, and then plug it to the electrical outlet. As with any electrical device, make sure the power source and camera are located in an area where it is not going to get wet or present an electrical hazard.



Connect Power using Power over Ethernet (PoE)

The TV-IP501P camera can be powered up via its Ethernet connection using Power over Ethernet technology. The diagram below shows you how to connect the TV-IP501P camera to a PoE enabled switch. If the switch or router you are connecting the TV-IP501P camera to does not support PoE, a power injector can be connected between the TV-IP501P Camera and the switch/router as shown in the diagram below.



Reset Camera

A manual reset can be conducted by following the procedure below. The reset button is located on the rear panel of the camera. To reset the system settings to factory defaults, please follow these steps:

- 1. Leave the camera powered on, do not disconnect the power.
- 2. Use a paper clip or similar object to press the reset button and hold. See the Rear Panel picture above to locate the reset button.
- 3. Keep the button pressed about 5 seconds.
- 4. Release the button.

The camera will then automatically reboot itself. Upon restarting the camera loads the factory default configuration settings. The default IP address 192.168.10.30 and subnet mask 255.255.255.0 will be applied unless a DHCP server is actively connected to the network. The administrator's default user name is admin and the password is admin. Use the Setup Wizard shipped with the camera to reconfigure it or access it through the web based management software.

Software - Setup Wizard

This section describes the how to setup a camera using the Setup Wizard. To install the Setup Wizard on a system running Windows, launch the Setup Wizard on the installation CD-ROM and follow the setup instructions. Once the software is installed, the Setup Wizard utility is ready for use.

Launching Setup Wizard for the first time

To launch the Setup Wizard, click Start > Programs > TRENDnet > Setup Wizard > Setup Wizard Install Your Camera

- Connect the camera to your LAN using the provided RJ45 cable.
- Connect the AC Power Adapter to the back of the camera and to a live power socket.
- Click Next to continue.



Select Your Camera

The following screen appears showing the cameras that have been found on your network.

- Click on the camera you want to configure.
- Click Next to continue



Authentication

On the following screen type in the ID and Password that you will use to configuring the camera settings.

- Type a User ID in the ID field.
- Type the password of the User in the Password field.
- Click Next to continue



Change Password

The following screen allows you to change the default admin password.

Carry out the following if you want to change the admin password:

- Tick the Change Password checkbox
- Type in a New Password in the New Password field and confirm it in the Confirm Password field
- Click the Next button to proceed to the next Setup window
- If you don't want to change the admin password, leave the checkbox un-ticked and click Next

Select a Connection Option

The following window allows you to specify the connection method used by your camera network.

Click the radio button of the network environment your camera is connected to. The available options are:

- PPPoE
- DHCP
- Fixed IP

If your connection method is DHCP, click the DHCP radio button and click Next.



	DNET		Setup Wizaro
Select a Conne Please select the o	ection O	ption option by your camera network environment. If you d	ion't know how to
C C	PPPoE	(Select this option if your camera is directly connect	ted
		to a DSL Modern and your ISP requires a PPPoE authentication to the Internet.)	
.*	DHCP	(Select this option if your camera is connected to a router and DHCP is enabled.)	
•	Fixed IP	(Select this option if your camera is directly connect to a DSL Modern and your ISP has supplied you wi fixed IP for your Internet connection.)	ted th a
		Previous Next	Exil
_		Copyright © 2	1000 TRENDreet. All Rights Reser

Select a Connection Option- PPPoE If your connection method is PPPoE, click the PPPoE radio button and click Next. The following window appears.

- Type the User Name used to connect to your PPPoE connection in the User Name field.
- Type the Password of the PPPoE User Name in the Password field and confirm it in the Confirm Password field.
- Click Next to proceed to the next setup window

Select a Connection Option- Fixed IP If your connection method is Fixed IP, click the Fixed IP radio button. The following window appears.

- Type in the IP Address, Subnet Mask, Default Gateway, Primary DNS Server IP address and Secondary DNS Server IP Address in the appropriate fields.
- Click Next to proceed to the next setup window.

Other Settings

The following window allows you to configure additional camera settings.

- Type a name to help you identify the camera in the Camera Name field.
- Set the camera date and time from the Camera Time drop-down menus. To use the time settings from your computer, click the Copy Local Time button.
- Click Next when you have finished configuring the other settings.

Authentication for	PPPoE Connection	
Please enter username modern. Click button "N network environment.	and password while ensuring that your camera is lext" to continue setting up. Or click button "Previo	s directly attached to your ous" to select another
	User Name	
	Password	
	Confirm Password	



	т		Setup Wizard
Other Settings			
You can have a name for th current time on "Camera ti	he camera. And you can also a me" option. Click button "Next"	djust the camera's to continue setting	clock by input the up.
	Camera Name		
	TV-IP501P		
	TV-IP501P Camera Time		
	TV-IP501P Camera Time 2009/05/27		
	TV-IP501P Camera Time 2009/05/27 09:43:32	M	12
	TV-IP501P Camera Time 2009/05/27 09:43:32	*	2
Conul continue	TV-IP501P Camera Time 2009/05/27 09:43:32	Maxt.	2

Setting Up The Camera

The following window appears, summarizing the network settings of your camera.

 When you have finished setting up the Camera click the Next button. To make any changes to your Camera settings, click the Previous button.

Camera Restart

The following window appears, indicating that the camera is restarting.

Complete

After the camera has restarted, the following window will appear.

- Click the Link button to connect to the camera web interface.
- If you want to setup an additional camera, click the Setup Another Camera button.
- When you have finished, click the Exit button to close the Setup Wizard.



	Setup Wizard
Congratulations ! Your camera has been configured correctly. Now please click the following URL to connect your camera by the web browser.	
http://192.168.69.35.80	-
Link Selup Another Camera	Exit

Browser Configuration

The camera is easy to use and manage using a web browser or the IPViewPro 2.0 software to access the camera's live video display, and configuration software. Check and make sure the computer can access and use the camera before placing it in the location where it will be used, especially if it is mounted to a ceiling or other difficult to access area.

For the initial setup, use the Setup Wizard program located on the CD-ROM included with the camera. Use the Setup Wizard to assign an IP address and other network settings. Once the camera has an IP address, follow the instructions below to access the camera's web management interface used to manage the camera and for video display.

Accessing the Camera Video Display

If the camera is used on a network with an active DHCP server, the camera will detect it and obtain an IP address. If you are using the camera on a network with a DHCP server it is necessary to first determine what the IP address of camera is. To do this, follow the instructions in the Quick Installation Guide to launch the Setup Wizard software utility used with the network camera.

NOTE: If your network uses DHCP or has an active DHCP server running, use the Setup Wizard utility on the installation CD-ROM shipped with the camera to first access the camera. Once it is accessed, you can change the IP address or continue to use the DHCP assigned address as preferred.

If your network does not use a DHCP server, the camera will use a default IP address of 192.168.10.30. Use this address to access the web-based management software. Use a web browser and type in http:// followed by the default IP address, 192.168.10.30 in the address bar of the browser and press the Enter key. The URL in the address bar should read: http://192.168.10.30

If the login dialog does not appear, check the proxy server settings on your browser.



NOTE: The wrong proxy server settings on your browser can prevent connection to the web manager. If you are having trouble connecting to the camera, configure the proxy settings to bypass the proxy server or disable use of proxy servers and try to connect again

Login

To access the web manager directly from a computer or on a network without a DHCP server running, use the default IP address of the camera in the browser address entry to access the web manager. Type http://192.168.10.30 in the address bar and press Enter. The login dialog appears when accessing the camera.

Connect to 192	2.168.69.35	? 🔀
R		
The server 192.1 and password. Warning: This ser password be sent without a secure	68.69.35 at TV-IP501P requir ver is requesting that your u in an insecure manner (basic connection).	es a username sername and : authentication
User name:	🖸 admin	~
Password:		
	Remember my passw	ord
	ОК	Cancel

Type the default user name "admin", default password "admin" and click on the OK button to access the camera's management interface.

Web Manager and Live Video Display Page

After login you'll be directed to the Home page which will display the last video screenshot.



The camera's web configuration provides two methods of viewing live video display:

- View Video ActiveX page
- View Video Java page

Video – ActiveX

To view live video from browser, using ActiveX, click the View Video-ActiveX Mode from the Welcome screen to access the live video feed :



Video – Java

To view live video from browser, using JAVA, click the View Video-JAVA Mode from Welcome screen to access the live video feed:



As you can see, both live video display pages are identical both in look and the controls that are available to manage the display.

Video Display Control	
Zoom : x1 x2 x3 x4	The Zoom option allows you to digitally zoom in on an object up to 4
	times
Audio : ON OFF	The Audio option allows you to toggle Audio mode ON or OFF
E-mail Image: ON OFF	The E-mail Image option allows you to turn the image e-mailing option
	ON or OFF
	The Upload Image option allows you to turn the image uploading
opload image: ON OFF	option ON or OFF

Administration - Status Section

The Status section displays information about the camera. In the Status section there are pages for System, Video, Audio, Network and Active Users.

System Page

The System Page display information about the Device Status and Ethernet Status of the camera. Information like the Camera Name, Location, Product Code, Firmware Version, MAC address, IP address, Link Status, Link Speed and Duplex.

	Bhei	TV-IP50
Home	Administration	View Video ActiveX View Video Java
Status • System	System	
• Video	Device Status	
Audio Network	Camera Name	TV-IP501P
Active Users	Location	
0	Model	TV-IP501P
Configuration	Firmware Version	3.50 (2009-05-21)
Tools	MAC Address	00 FF 32 93 4C D0
Help	IP Address	192.168.69.35
	Ethernet Status	
	Link	Yes
	Speed	100M bps
	Duplex	Full Duplex
		Refresh

Video

The Video page displays information about the video configuration of the camera like Video Resolution Compression Rate, Frame Rate Frame Size and Light Frequency.

Video Status		
Video Resolution	320 X 240	
Compression Rate	Medium	
Frame Rate	Auto	
Frame Size	15921 Bytes	
Light Frequency	60 Hz	

Audio

The Video page displays information about the audio configuration of the camera like Audio Enabled or Disabled, Audio Volume Level, Codec and Sample rate.

Audio Status	
Audio	Enable
Volume	50
Codec	PCM
Sample Rate	16 kHz

Network

The Network page display the network configuration for the camera like IP Address, Subnet Mask, Default gateway, Primary and Secondary DNS Addresses, Dynamic DNS Enabled or Disabled, Secondary HTTP Port value, UPnP IP Address, FTP Server and E-Mail setup.

IP Address	192.168.69.35	
Subnet Mask	255,255.255.0	
Default Gateway	192.168.69.1	
Primary DNS Address	0.0.0.0	
Secondary DNS Address	0.0.0.0	
Dynamic DNS	Disable	
Secondary HTTP Port	Disable (Port : 81)	
UPnP	Enable (IP : 192.168.1.4)	
FTP Server Test	No Test	
E-mail Test	No Test	

Active Users

The Active Users Page displays information about the current active users that are connected to the camera like IP Address, Name, Date/Time and Speed/Throughput.

Active Use	rs		
IP Address	Name	DateTime	Millisecond / Packet
Refresh	Name	Daternine	Williactoriu / Packet

Configuration Section

In the configuration you can set the configuration for the camera.

System

On the Status Page you can configure general system settings for the camera.

Camera Name:

Configure the camera's display name.

Location:

Configure the camera's display location.

Admin:

Configure the Username and Password for the camera.

LED Control:

Configure the LED display Controls. ON / OFF / DUMMY

)NET	ProView PoE Internet Camera TV-IP5011
Home	Administration	View Video ActiveX View Video Java
Status Configuration	System	
• <u>System</u>	System Setting	
• Video	Camera Name	TV-IP501P
Network	Location	
• User • Date/Time • Upload • E-mail	Admin	Admin ID admin Admin Password ••••• Confirm Again •••••
Tools	LED Control	Normal O OFF O Dummy
Help		Save Cancel
		Copyright © 2009 TRENDnet. All Flights Reserve

Video

On the Video page you can configure the video display settings for the camera.

Video Resolution:

Select between 3 different Video Resolutions.

Compression Rate:

Select between 5 different Compression Rates.

Frame Rate:

Select between 5 different Frame Rates

Choose Auto to let the camera choose the best frame rate needed.

Brightness Control:

Option to manually configure the video brightness.

Contrast Control:

Option to manually configure the video contrast.

Saturation Control:

Option to manually configure the video saturation.

Light Frequency:

Option to configure the light frequency.

Mirror:

Option to flip the live video feed horizontal or vertical.

Anti-Flicker:

Option to enable or disable Anti-Flicker.

Audio

On the Audio page you can configure the audio settings for the camera.

Audio:

Option to enable or disable the Audio settings.

Volume:

Option to set the Volume level.

deo Settings			
Video Resolution	O 160 x 120	⊙ 320 x 240	○ 640 x 480
Compression Rate	O Very Low O High	◯ Low ◯ Very High	Medium
Frame Rate (Frames/Sec.)	01050	7 0 15 0 20	Auto
Brightness Control	-10 -1 64	+1 +10	
Contrast Control	-10 -1 64	+1 +10	
Saturation Control	-10 -1 64	+1 +10	
Light Frequency	○ 50 Hz ④ 6	0 Hz	
Mirror	Horizontal Mir	rror 🔲 Vertical Min	rror
Anti-Flicker	Enable		
	Save C	ancel	

Audio Enable Disable	no octanigo		
	Audio	Enable	O Disable
Volume 50	Volume	50 💌	

Network

Click the Network Setup link to view menus for IP network settings, PPPoE configuration, DDNS and HTTP or RTSP port configuration.

Fixed IP:

Selecting Static IP Configuration requires you to assign IP information for the camera manually.

Dynamic IP (DHCP):

Selecting DHCP Configuration will cause the camera to obtain an IP address from a local DHCP Server.

PPPoE:

Enable this feature if you want the camera to access the Internet using PPPoE. This requires and PPPoE Username and Password.

DNS IP Address:

Enter DNS IP Addresses used by your ISP here manually.

P/IP	
IP Address Mode	Fixed IP
	IP Address : 192.168.69.35
	Subnet Mask 255.255.255.0
	Default Gateway : 192.168.69.1
	O Dynamic IP (DHCP)
	O PPPoE
	User ID :
	Password :
DNS IP Address	1. 0.0.0.0
	2. 0.0.0.0
Dynamic DNS	O Enable
	Service Provider : DynDNS.org
	Host Name :
	User Name/E-mail
	Password/Key
Second HTTP Port	O Enable Disable
	Port Number : 81
UPnP	● Enable ○ Disable

Enable DDNS:

Enable this feature to use Dynamic DNS. This requires a DDNS account and you must enter the details accordingly here.

Enable this feature to use UPnP setup method.

Second HTTP Port:

You can enable or disable a secondary http port here. You can change the port number used for the secondary http connection.

UPnP:

Enable this feature to be able to connect to this camera using UPnP

User

On the User page you can create or delete users.

Access Control:

Here you can enable or disable user access control.

Define User:

Here you can add user accounts.

Delete User:

Here you can remove user accounts.

User Access Contro	l		
Access Control	● Enable ○ Disable		
	Save Cancel		
Define Users			
Add User	User Name User Password Upload/E-mail Image	√es ⊙ No	
	Add		
Delete User			
Delete User	Delete		
	Name	Upload/E-mail Image	

Upload

On this page you can define how the camera uploads images and video to an FTP server.

Host Address:

Enter the FTP Server's IP Address here.

Port number:

Enter the FTP port used here.

Username:

Enter the FTP Username here.

Password:

Enter the FTP Password here.

Directory Path:

Enter the FTP Directory Path here.

Passive Mode:

Enable or Disable Passive Mode here.

Time Schedule:

You can setup the time schedule here.

Manual Operation:

Setup Manual Operation here.

Jpload	
FTP Server	
Host Address	
Port Number	21 (Default is 21)
User Name	
Password	
Directory Path	
Passive Mode	○ Yes ④ No
Time Schedule	Enable upload image to FTP server
	Always Schedule Day: Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Time Period: Start [00:00:00 Stop [00:00:00 Example: 22:30:00] Video Frequency: 1 Frames/Second 1 Seconds/Frame
	Base File Name: File: Overwrite O Date/Time Suffix Sequence Number Suffix Up to 1024
Manual Operation	Enable upload image to FTP server
	Base File Name: File: O Overwrite O Date/Time Suffix O Sequence Number Suffix Up to 1024
	Sequence Number Suffix Up to 1024 Security Cancel

E-Mail

On this page you can setup the e-mail client configuration that the camera can use.

SMTP Server Address:

Enter the Mail Server IP address here.

SMTP Port Number:

Enter the SMTP port number used here.

Sender's E-Mail Address:

Enter the Sender's e-mail address here:

Recipient's E-Mail Address:

Enter the Recipient's e-mail address here.

User Name:

Enter the mail client username used here.

Password:

Enter the mail client password used here.

Time Schedule:

You can define the time schedule here.

Manual Operation:

You can setup manual operation here.

-mail Account	
SMTP Server Address	
SMTP Port Number	25 (Default is 25)
Sender's E-mail Address	
Recipient's E-mail Address	
User Name	
Password	
Time Schedule	 Enable e-mail image to e-mail account Always Schedule Day: Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun Time: Stat: 00.00.00 (Example: 02.00) (Example: 22.20.00) Interval: 300 Seconds
Manual Operation	Enable e-mail image to e-mail account Interval : 300 Seconds

Tools Section

The Tools section offers many features to test FTP server settings E-Mail settings Firmware upgrade, Backup settings and Restart or Restore options.

FTP Server Test

This page will help the user to test if the FTP server settings are setup correctly. It will send a JPEG file to the FTP server called 'test_date_time.jpg' as a test.



E-Mail Test

This page will help the user to test if the e-mail settings are setup correctly. It will send a test mail to the recipient's e-mail address as a test.

E-mail test will send a	n e-mail to your e-mail address.	
Do you want to test e-	nan account?	
Test		

Restart

This page gives you the option to manually restart the camera.

Restart			
Do you want to restart h	is device?		
Yes			

-		
Device has been rest	arted.	

Factory Reset

This page gives you the option the factory reset your camera through its web configuration.

						 	_
Do you want	to restore t	his device	to factor	/ default	setting?		
Yes							

Firmware Upgrade

This page gives you the option to upgrade the firmware for the camera. To upgrade the firmware you'll need to download the latest firmware for your camera to your computer, click on the Browse button, navigate to the downloaded file and click Upgrade. This will upgrade the firmware for your camera.

Current Firmw	are Version and I	Date: 3.50 (200	9-05-21)	
Select a Firmy	vare Hile :		Browse	
Upgrade	Cancel			

Backup and Restore

This page will allow the user to backup the configuration of the camera to a file that can be saved remotely. It also gives the option to restore the settings from the backup file saved on the hard drive.



Software – IPViewPro 2.0

This section describes the how to setup a camera using the IPViewPro 2.0 camera monitoring software. To install IPViewPro 2.0 on a system running Windows, launch the IPViewPro 2.0 installation software on the installation CD-ROM and follow the setup instructions. Once the software is installed, the IPViewPro 2.0 camera monitoring utility is ready for use. Add up to 32 network cameras to monitor using the software. Additional software, IPViewPro 2.0 Player software is also installed. The IPViewPro 2.0 Player is used for playing recorded video from cameras that have been configured to save recorded files.

Launching IPViewPro 2.0 for the first time

To launch IPViewPro 2.0, click Start > Programs > TRENDnet > IPViewPro 2.0. If this is the first time using the software, the menu that appears on is the Add camera menu.



Add a camera for monitoring

The Add camera menu is presented the first time the IPViewPro 2.0 software is launched. This menu is used to add cameras to the user interface for monitoring. After the first time running the software, this menu can be accessed at anytime from the configuration menus. The configuration menus are described in a later section of this chapter. Notice that the IPViewPro 2.0 software has automatically detected eligible cameras running on the network.

To add a camera to the IPViewPro 2.0 user interface, follow these instructions:

 Check the list of cameras detected by the software, if the camera you want does not appear on the list then clicks the Refresh button to conduct another search.



2. Select the camera to add from the list, enter the administrator's user name and password, a preview of the live video display will appear. Click the OK, add this camera button, a confirmation message informs when the camera is connected and added to the IPViewPro 2.0 monitoring group. Repeat this procedure for all the cameras being added. Click the Exit button after all the cameras have been added.

Live preview	of 192.168.69.35
Usemame	admin
Password	••••
Camera is co You can add	nnected! the camera: 192.168.69.35
	Username Password Camera is co You can add

If the camera does not appear listed, click the Input the location of camera tab above the list to view a new menu. Enter the IP address or the URL (for example, ipcam.ddns.org) of the camera being added, type the user name and password and click the Preview to verify that a link can be established. The live video of the camera should appear in the Live preview display. If a link cannot be established, run the Setup Wizard software for the camera and verify the correct IP address. Click Exit to return to the main Add camera menu.

3. Once the cameras have been added, they are ready to be used in the main IPViewPro 2.0 user interface. Close the Add camera menu (click Exit) to go to the main user interface. See below for a description.

IPViewPro 2.0 User Interface

Below is a general description of the user interface.



No.	Item	Description
1	Live video display area	Display area for single or multiple cameras of live video.
		Right click on any display area to view a list of quick
		configure options for that camera including the "Replace
		camera content" option used to change the order of the
		live video displays for multiple camera views.
2	Minimize and Exit	Use to minimize IPViewPro 2.0 interface or exit the program,
		a confirmation is required to exit.
3	Pan and Tilt control	Click directional arrows to move camera in that direction
	(Only for cameras equipped with	within the limits of the pan and tilt range. The + in the center
	RS-485 controlled pan/tilt	of the control is used to return to the home or center view as
	motorized mount)	configured for the camera.
4	Snapshot, recording and audio	See below for detailed information.
	controls	
5	Live video display controls	See below for detailed information.
6	Camera configuration menu	See below for detailed information.
7	Camera status	Use to quickly assess the status of operating cameras. Click

			on box to select camera display. The status indicators for each camera display recording, motion detection and GP
8 Camera information Displays basic information on selected camera.	8	Camera information	Displays basic information on selected camera.

Display Controls

The primary display and IPViewPro 2.0 control icons are described in detail below. When there are more than one camera displays viewed, one of the displays can be selected for management or additional changes. Simply left click on any display to select it. Notice the border around the display is bright aqua blue, indicating the "selected" status. For example, to go to a single screen display for any one camera, select the camera and click on the single screen display.

Left click on any display to "select" that display for camera management. Right click to view camera management and display options.



Snapshot, recording and audio controls

The still photo camera icon is used to take a snapshot of the selected live video display. The video camera icon is used to begin video recording of the selected live video display. Snapshot and videos files are stored in a default folder on the administrator's system, or in a folder designated by the administrator. The audio controls are represented by a microphone icon to activate the internal mic or the auxiliary audio input (if present), and a speaker icon for the audio output (remote speakers, if present). Notice that when these functions are activated, the color of the icon changes from white to yellow.



Inactive



Active

Live video display controls

Use the video display controls to change the view of the live video display. This is useful for multiple camera application.



Camera configuration with IPViewPro 2.0

Access the camera configuration menus by clicking on the gear icon at the bottom of the right hand panel of the IPViewPro 2.0 user interface. Configuration options include adding and deleting cameras from the display view, configuration of motion detection and digital input with schedules, recording options, email alerts and other network settings.

Adding a Camera

The procedure to add a camera after the initial launch of the software is very similar to the procedure used during the first setup. Follow the instructions below to add cameras.

- Click the Configuration icon to view the Camera Setup menu. The top most tab of the menu is the Camera Management tab. A list of active cameras appears on the left half of the menu. Select the camera to be added from the list. Click the Add Camera by IP Address to find the specified IP address or network URL of the camera you want to add.
- 2. Select the camera to add from the list, enter the administrator's user name and password, a preview of the live video display will appear. Click the OK, add this camera button, a confirmation message informs when the camera is connected and added to the IPViewPro 2.0 monitoring group. Repeat this procedure for all the cameras being added. Click the Exit button after all the cameras have been added.
- The camera added now appears in the Camera List. To launch the web manager for the newly added camera or any camera in the active camera list, select it and click the Browse Selected Camera button.



Removing a Camera

To remove the camera from the list of active:

- 1. Select the camera you want to remove.
- 2. Click Delete Selected Camera.

Note: Any camera display can be removed from the main IPViewPro 2.0 user interface by right clicking on the display screen for the camera and selecting the Remove this Camera option.

Launch Web Manager for Selected Camera

To launch the web-based IP Camera manager for any active camera in the list, simply select it and click the Browse Selected Camera button.

Schedule Recording with IPViewPro 2.0

Use the Camera Setup menu to create schedules for recording and apply the schedules to any camera. Click the Camera Settings tab to view the Schedule Recording menu (the first menu viewed in the Camera Settings menu tab).

To apply an existing schedule template, click the Select button and choose a schedule from the list of previously created schedule templates. If a new schedule is needed it can be created from the Select Schedule Template menu (See below).

Schedule recording Motion detection	
Enable schedule recording	
Check Time	
	Annhe
	Apply to all comera.

Create Schedule Templates

To make a new schedule template, click the Create Template button to view the Create Schedule Profile menu. Use this menu to create new schedules for recording.

Profile Schedule1 Schedule2	Mode	Start time	End time
	Døy	09/05/26 00:00	09/05/26 24:0
	Week	00:00	24:00
<] Create templa	ate	Add	Cancel



Motion Detection and Digital Input

The Camera Settings menus include Motion Detection setup and Digital Input control. Each menu has the schedule option to apply a schedule for the action taken or always take the specified action.

Camera select TV-IP501P(192.168.69.35) Schedule recording Motion detection	¥		
Check Time Order Of Arrays O'Schedule	Select Remove	Action Ac	Select Parrove
			Apply to all camera

For Motion Detection, use the Config motion detection area menu to create the area to which it is applicable. Click the Config motion detection area button in the Motion Detection setup menu to view the menu in a new pop up window.

Config camera motion detecting area[192.168.69.35]	×
Motion detection	Activate MD Sensitivity 80 1~100% Drawing mode

IPViewPro 2.0 Miscellaneous Options

The Other Options available for configuration include Proxy server setup, email notification, scan interval and alert type settings.

toxy settings		E-Mail sender settings		
Praxy		Sender E-Mail address		
Address	Port	Subject title		
Bypass proxy server for local network addr		Port	25	(range :1~65535)
ime interval of scan		Usemame		
5 Seconds		Password		
ocal alert settings				Test
Motion detection alert sound:				
Disitel issue along a sure of		System settings		
Digital input alen sound.		Automatically launch t	this progra	im at system starting.
Video loss elert sound:		Resume Manual Rec	ording stat	te on application start up.
	لسا لکا			
				About

Load Saved Video Files

Each camera has a file created automatically for storing video files. These files are normally located in the My Documents folder in Windows. The file folders are named according to the IP address and camera model. For example, 192.168.10.30_TV-IP501P is the name of the file folder for the TV-IP501P using the default (non-DHCP) IP address.



No.	Item	Description
1	File list	Video files added to the list are viewed in the order listed.
2	View Screen	Video files in the list are played here. The progress bar and starting time
		of the video clip appears beneath the view screen.
3	Add/Delete files	Use the Search Files button to add recorded video files. A new menu
	from list	pops up that is used to find and add files to the list. (See description on
		next page)
4	Playback controls	Standard video playback controls for Stop, Play/Pause, go to next file
		(>>) or go to previous file (<<) Speed up and Speed down to control
		speed of playback. The vertical slider control is used for audio volume
		control.

To view recorded video files in the IPViewPro Player, it is first necessary to locate and select the files to be viewed and add them to the list. Click the Search Files button in the IPViewPro Player main interface and a new menu appears.

In the new menu, use the Select Camera pull-down menu to choose the video file folder of the camera to be reviewed. Use the Search Time menu to narrow the search to a specific time and date. Finally, the Event selection menu is used to further narrow the scope of the file search for videos triggered by Motion

Detection or a Digital Input device, or files designated for Server Recording. When the search criteria have been defined, click the Search button to place qualified files in the Search list.



Choose the files to be added to the view file list by check marking the individual files or click the Select All button to check mark all files in the Search list, click Add to place the check marked files on the list of files for viewing.

After the files to be viewed have been chosen, click the OK button.

Technical Specifications

Camera	
General	Sensor: 1/4" color CMOS image sensor
	Resolution: up to 640 x 480 pixels
	Board lens
	Focal length: 4.57mm
	F/No: F1.9
	Minimum illumination: 1 Lux
	Focus depth: 20cm ~ infinity
	View angle: horizontal: 45 degree, vertical: 35 degree
Audio	Built-in microphone
	Sensitivity: -48dB +/- 3dB (5 meters max)
	Frequency: 50~16000Hz
	S/N: 50dB
	Codec: PCM
Image & Video	Compression: MJPEG
	Exposure/white balance control: automatic
	Resolution: VGA (640x480), QVGA (320x240), QQVGA (160x120) up to 30fps
Hardware	
Network	IEEE 802.3u 10/100Mbps Fast Ethernet, Auto-MDIX
	IEEE 802.3af PoE
LED	Power, Link
Reset Button	Reset settings
Power Consumption	1.5 watts
Power	5V, 2.5A external power adapter
Dimension	195 x 90 x 50mm (7.7 x 3.5 x 2 in.)
Stand Dimension	128 mm (4.7 in.)
Weight	Camera: 133g (4.7oz.)
	Stand: 121g (4.3 oz.)
Temperature	Operating: 5°C ~ 40°C (41°F ~ 104°F)
	Storage: -15°C ~ 50°C (5°F ~ 122°F)
Certification	CE, FCC
Requirement	
To View Camera Browser	Internet Explorer 6.0 or above, Safari 2.0 or above, Firefox 2.0 or above and Netscape
To Run IPView Pro	Windows XP (32/64-bit), Vista (32/64-bit)
Software	

IPView Pro 2.0	Channel: supports up to 32 cameras
	Record/Playback/Motion Detection/Audio
Network Protocols	IPV4, ARP, TCP, UDP,ICMP
	DHCP Client, NTP Client, DNS Client, DDNS Client, SMTP Client, FTP Client
	HTTP Server
	РРРОЕ
	UPnP
Management	
Remote	Remote management supported
Backup / Restore	Save/retrieve configuration files
Settings	
Image	Brightness, contrast, noise reduction, saturation, sharpness, white balance, flip
	mirror(horizontal/vertical)
Video	Encoding type: MJPEG
	Compression rate: 5 levels
	Frame rate: 1, 5, 7, 15, 20, Auto (up to 30fps)
	Frequency: 50Hz, 60Hz
Recording	Storage size: 32MB (minimum)
(via Software)	Recording type: event based (motion detection), continuous and scheduled
Snapshot	Trigger event: motion detection
(via Software)	Action: send alert email and/or upload to FTP
Access Port	HTTP port: 80 (default)
Digital Zoom	4x
Dynamic DNS	Yes
Time	Synchronize with NTP server or set time/date manually

Limited Warranty

TRENDnet warrants its products against defects in material and workmanship, under normal use and service, for the following lengths of time from the date of purchase.

TV-IP501P – 3 Years Warranty

AC/DC Power Adapter, Cooling Fan, and Power Supply carry 1 year warranty.

If a product does not operate as warranted during the applicable warranty period, TRENDnet shall reserve the right, at its expense, to repair or replace the defective product or part and deliver an equivalent product or part to the customer. The repair/replacement unit's warranty continues from the original date of purchase. All products that are replaced become the property of TRENDnet. Replacement products may be new or reconditioned. TRENDnet does not issue refunds or credit. Please contact the point-of-purchase for their return policies.

TRENDnet shall not be responsible for any software, firmware, information, or memory data of customer contained in, stored on, or integrated with any products returned to TRENDnet pursuant to any warranty.

There are no user serviceable parts inside the product. Do not remove or attempt to service the product by any unauthorized service center. This warranty is voided if (i) the product has been modified or repaired by any unauthorized service center, (ii) the product was subject to accident, abuse, or improper use (iii) the product was subject to conditions more severe than those specified in the manual.

Warranty service may be obtained by contacting TRENDnet within the applicable warranty period and providing a copy of the dated proof of the purchase. Upon proper submission of required documentation a Return Material Authorization (RMA) number will be issued. An RMA number is required in order to initiate warranty service support for all TRENDnet products. Products that are sent to TRENDnet for RMA service must have the RMA number marked on the outside of return packages and sent to TRENDnet prepaid, insured and packaged appropriately for safe shipment. Customers shipping from outside of the USA and Canada are responsible for return shipping fees. Customers shipping from outside of the USA are responsible for custom charges, including but not limited to, duty, tax, and other fees.

WARRANTIES EXCLUSIVE: IF THE TRENDNET PRODUCT DOES NOT OPERATE AS WARRANTED ABOVE, THE CUSTOMER'S SOLE REMEDY SHALL BE, AT TRENDNET'S OPTION, REPAIR OR REPLACE. THE FOREGOING WARRANTIES AND REMEDIES ARE EXCLUSIVE AND ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OR OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. TRENDNET NEITHER ASSUMES NOR AUTHORIZES ANY OTHER PERSON TO ASSUME FOR IT ANY OTHER LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE, INSTALLATION MAINTENANCE OR USE OF TRENDNET'S PRODUCTS. TRENDNET SHALL NOT BE LIABLE UNDER THIS WARRANTY IF ITS TESTING AND EXAMINATION DISCLOSE THAT THE ALLEGED DEFECT IN THE PRODUCT DOES NOT EXIST OR WAS CAUSED BY CUSTOMER'S OR ANY THIRD PERSON'S MISUSE, NEGLECT, IMPROPER INSTALLATION OR TESTING, UNAUTHORIZED ATTEMPTS TO REPAIR OR MODIFY, OR ANY OTHER CAUSE BEYOND THE RANGE OF THE INTENDED USE, OR BY ACCIDENT, FIRE, LIGHTNING, OR OTHER HAZARD.

LIMITATION OF LIABILITY: TO THE FULL EXTENT ALLOWED BY LAW TRENDNET ALSO EXCLUDES FOR ITSELF AND ITS SUPPLIERS ANY LIABILITY, WHETHER BASED IN CONTRACT OR TORT (INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE), FOR INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES OF ANY KIND, OR FOR LOSS OF REVENUE OR PROFITS, LOSS OF BUSINESS, LOSS OF INFORMATION OR DATE, OR OTHER FINANCIAL LOSS ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE, INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, USE, PERFORMANCE, FAILURE, OR INTERRUPTION OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES, AND LIMITS ITS LIABILITY TO REPAIR, REPLACEMENT, OR REFUND OF THE PURCHASE PRICE PAID, AT TRENDNET'S OPTION. THIS DISCLAIMER OF LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES WILL NOT BE AFFECTED IF ANY REMEDY PROVIDED HEREIN SHALL FAIL OF ITS ESSENTIAL PURPOSE.

Governing Law: This Limited Warranty shall be governed by the laws of the state of California.

Some TRENDnet products include software code written by third party developers. These codes are subject to the GNU General Public License ("GPL") or GNU Lesser General Public License ("LGPL").

Go to <u>http://www.trendnet.com/gpl</u> or <u>http://www.trendnet.com</u> Download section and look for the desired TRENDnet product to access to the GPL Code or LGPL Code. These codes are distributed WITHOUT WARRANTY and are subject to the copyrights of the developers. TRENDnet does not provide technical support for these codes. Please go to <u>http://www.gnu.org/licenses/gpl.txt</u> or <u>http://www.gnu.org/licenses/lgpl.txt</u> for specific terms of each license.



Product Warranty Registration

Please take a moment to register your product online. Go to TRENDnet's website at http://www.trendnet.com/register

TRENDNET 20675 Manhattan Place Torrance, CA 90501 USA

Copyright ©2009. All Rights Reserved. TRENDnet.